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Facility Proceeding under EPCRA §§ 313 and
325(c), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023 and 11045(¢)

CONSENT AGREEMENT

Preliminary Statement

This Consent Agreement is entered into by the Director of the Land and Chemicals Division,
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III (“Complainant™), and Hi-Tech Color, Inc.
(*Respondent™), pursuant to Sections 313 and 325(c) of the Emergency Planning and
Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 (“EPCRA™), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023 and [1045(c), the
regulations implementing EPCRA § 313, as set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 372, and the Consolidated
Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the
Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (“Consolidated Rules of Practice™), 40 C.F.R.
Part 22. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and .18(b)(2) and (3), this Consent Agreement and
the accompanying Final Order (collectively, “CAFO”), simultaneously commence and conclude
this proceeding to resolve violations of EPCRA § 313, 42 U.S.C. § 11023 and implementing
regulations promulgated thereunder, as alleged herein, by Respondent at its facility located at
1721 Midway Road, Odenton, Maryland, 21113.

General Provisions

1. For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set
forth in this CAFO.

2. Except as provided in Paragraph 1, above, Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific
factual allegations and legal conclusions set forth in this CAFO.
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3. Respondent agrees not to contest the jurisdiction of EPA with respect to the execution of this
Consent Agreement, the issuance of the attached Final Order, or the enforcement of this
CAFO.

4. For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives any right to
contest any issue of law or fact set forth in this Consent Agreement and any right to appeal

the accompanying Final Order.

5. Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO and agrees to comply with its terms and
conditions.

6. Respondent shall bear its own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this proceeding.

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

7. In accordance with Sections 22.13(b) and .18(b)(2) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice,
Complainant adopts the following findings of fact and conclusions of law.

8. EPCRA Section 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), requires subject owners or operators of any
facility that, in any calendar year, manufactures, processes or otherwise uses a toxic chemical
listed under EPCRA Section 313(¢), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(c), in quantities exceeding a
regulatory threshold under EPCRA Section 313(f), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f), to complete and
submit a toxic chemical release inventory report (i.e., “Form R” or “Form A”) for each such
listed toxic chemical. Pursuant to EPCRA Section 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), each
required Form R or Form A must include the information required under Section 313(g) of
EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(g), and must be submitted to EPA and to the designated State
agency by July 1 of the year following the year for which such toxic inventory report is
required.

9. EPCRA Section 313(b), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(b), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.22 provide, in relevant
and applicable part, that a facility which meets the following criteria for a calendar year is a
“covered facility” for that calendar year and must report under 40 C.F.R. § 372.30: [a] the
facility has 10 or more full-time employees; [b] the facility is in a Standard Industrial
Classification (“SIC”) (as in effect on January 1, 1987) major group or industrial code listed
in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(a), for which the corresponding North American Industrial
Classification System (“NAICS”) (as in effect on January 1, 2007, for reporting year 2008
and thereafter) subsector and industry codes are listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(b) and (c) by
virtue of the fact that the facility is an establishment with a primary SIC major group or
industry code listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(b) or 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(c); and [c] the facility
manufactured (including imported), processed or otherwise used a toxic chemical in excess
of an applicable threshold quantity of that chemical set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 372.25, 372.27,
or 372.28.
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40 C.F.R. § 372.30(a) provides, in relevant part, that for each toxic chemical known by the
owner or operator to be manufactured (including imported), processed, or otherwise used in
excess of an applicable threshold quantity in 40 C.F.R. § 372.25,372.27, or 372.28 at its
covered facility for a calendar year, the owner or operator must submit to EPA and to the
State in which the covered facility is located a completed EPA Form R (EPA Form 9350-1)
or Form A (EPA Form 9350-2) in accordance with the instructions referred to in 40 C.F.R.
Part 372, Subpart E.

40 C.F.R. § 372.30(d) provides, in relevant part, that : “[e]ach report under this section for
activities involving a toxic chemical that occurred during a calendar year at a covered facility
must be submitted on or before July 1 of the next year.”

Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3 define “facility”
to mean, in relevant part, all buildings, equipment, structures, and other stationary items
that are located on a single site and that are owned or operated by the same person.

Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7), defines “person” to include any
corporation.

Respondent is incorporated in the State of Delaware and is a “person” as defined in Section
329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7).

Respondent owns and operates, and at the time of the violations alleged herein, owned and
operated a printing ink manufacturing and refining plant located at 1721 Midway Road,
Odenton, Maryland, 21113 (“Facility™).

Respondent’s Facility is a “facility” as defined in Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 11049(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3.

During each calendar year 2012, 2013 and 2014, Respondent employed 10 or more full-time
employees at the Facility.

During each calendar year 2012, 2013 and 2014, the Facility had a SIC code of 2893.
For purposes of the toxic chemical release reporting requirements, the Facility was a
“covered facility,” within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and 372.30(c), in the 2013

calendar year.

Counts I -II- Cyclohexane — 2012, 2013

The preceding paragraphs are incorporated by reference.

“Cyclohexane” is listed as a chemical in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(a) and is a “toxic chemical” as
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defined in EPCRA §§ 313(c) and 329(10), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023(c) and 11049(10), and 40
C.F.R. §3723.

As set forth in Section 313(f)(1)(B)(iii) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f)(1)(B)(iii), and 40
C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for cyclohexane processed at a facility is
25,000 pounds.

Respondent processed more than 25,000 pounds of cyclohexane at the Facility during each of
the 2012 and 2013 calendar years.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent was
required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of 2013,
a completed Form R or Form A for the cyclohexane processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2012.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent was
required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 0of 2014,
a completed Form R or Form A for the cyclohexane processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2013.

Respondent filed a complete Form R or Form A for the toxic chemical cyclohexane
processed at the Facility during calendar years 2012 and 2013 with the Administrator of EPA
and the State of Maryland on or about April 29, 2016.

Respondent’s failure to timely file a complete Form R or Form A with EPA or the State of
Maryland for the toxic chemical cyclohexane processed at the Facility during the calendar
years 2012 and 2013 constitutes two violations of Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023
and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

Counts III -V— Methyl Isobutyl Ketone — 2012 — 2014

The preceding paragraphs are incorporated by reference.

Methyl isobutyl ketone is listed as a chemical in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(a) and is a “toxic
chemical” as defined in EPCRA §§ 313(c) and 329(10), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023(c) and
11049(10), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3.

As set forth in Section 313(f)(1)(B)(iii) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f)(1)(B)(iii), and 40
C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for methyl isobutyl ketone processed at a
facility is 25,000 pounds.

Respondent processed more than 25,000 pounds of methyl isobutyl ketone at the Facility
during each of the 2012, 2013 and 2014 calendar years.

4
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Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2013 a completed Form R or Form A for the methyl isobutyl ketone processed at the Facility
during the calendar year 2012.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2014 a completed Form R or Form A for the methyl isobutyl ketone processed at the Facility
during the calendar year 2013.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2015 a completed Form R or Form A for the methyl isobutyl ketone processed at the Facility
during the calendar year 2014.

Respondent filed complete Form Rs or Form As for the toxic chemical methyl isobutyl
ketone processed at the Facility during calendar years 2012, 2013 and 2014 with the
Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland on or about April 29, 2016.

Respondent’s failure to timely file a complete Form R or Form A with EPA or the State of
Maryland for the toxic chemical methyl isobutyl ketone processed at the Facility during
calendar years 2012, 2013, and 2014 constitutes three violations of Section 313 of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 11023 and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

Counts VI -VIII- N,N-Dimethvlformamide — 2012 —- 2014

The preceding paragraphs are incorporated by reference.

N,N-Dimethylformamide is listed as a chemical in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(b) and is a “toxic
chemical” as defined in EPCRA §§ 313(c) and 329(10), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023(c) and
11049(10), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3.

As set forth in Section 313(f)(1)(B)(iii) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f)(1)(B)(iii), and 40
C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for N,N-dimethylformamide processed at a
facility is 25,000 pounds.

Respondent processed more than 25,000 pounds of for N,N-dimethylformamide at the
Facility during each of the 2012, 2013 and 2014 calendar years.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent

was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2013 a completed Form R or Form A for the for N,N-dimethylformamide processed at the

5
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Facility during the calendar year 2012.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2014 a completed Form R or Form A for the for N,N-dimethylformamide processed at the
Facility during the calendar year 2013.

. Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent

was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2015 a completed Form R or Form A for the for N,N-dimethylformamide processed at the
Facility during the calendar year 2014.

. Respondent filed complete Form Rs or Form As for the toxic chemical for N,N-

dimethylformamide processed at the Facility during calendar years 2012, 2013 and 2014 with
the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland on or about April 29, 2016.

Respondent’s failure to timely file a complete Form R or Form A with EPA or the State of
Maryland for the toxic chemical for N,N-dimethylformamide processed at the Facility during
calendar years 2012, 2013, and 2014 constitutes three violations of Section 313 of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 11023 and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

Counts IX- XI-—- Toluene — 2012 — 2014

The preceding paragraphs are incorporated by reference.

Toluene is listed as a chemical in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(a) and is a “toxic chemical” as defined
in EPCRA §§ 313(c) and 329(10), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023(c) and 11049(10), and 40 C.F.R. §
372.3.

As set forth in Section 313(f)(1)(B)(iii) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(£)(1)(B)(iii), and 40
C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for toluene processed at a facility is 25,000
pounds.

Respondent processed more than 25,000 pounds of toluene at the Facility during each of the
2012, 2013 and 2014 calendar years.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2013 a completed Form R or Form A for the toluene processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2012.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent

6
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was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2014 a completed Form R or Form A for the toluene processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2013.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2015 a completed Form R or Form A for the toluene processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2014.

Respondent filed complete Form Rs or Form As for the toxic chemical toluene processed at
the Facility during calendar years 2012, 2013 and 2014 with the Administrator of EPA and
the State of Maryland on or about April 29, 2016.

Respondent’s failure to timely file a complete Form R or Form A with EPA or the State of
Maryland for the toxic chemical toluene processed at the Facility during each of the calendar
years 2012, 2013 and 2014 constitutes three violations of Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 11023 and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

Count XII-XIV —Xylene — 2012 - 2014
The preceding paragraphs are incorporated by reference.

Xylene is listed as a chemical in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(a) and is a “toxic chemical” as defined
in EPCRA §§ 313(c) and 329(10), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023(c) and 11049(10), and 40 C.F.R. §
372.3.

As set forth in Section 313(f)(1)(B)(iii) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f)(1)(B)(iii), and 40
C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for xylene processed at a facility is 25,000
pounds.

Respondent processed more than 25,000 pounds of xylene at the Facility during each of the
2012, 2013 and 2014 calendar years.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2013 a completed Form R or Form A for the xylene processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2012.

Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2014 a completed Form R or Form A for the xylene processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2013.
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Pursuant to EPCRA § 313(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, Respondent
was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and the State of Maryland by July 1 of
2015 a completed Form R or Form A for the xylene processed at the Facility during the
calendar year 2014.

Respondent filed complete Form Rs or Form As for the toxic chemical xylene processed at
the Facility during calendar years 2012, 2013 and 2014 with the Administrator of EPA and
the State of Maryland on or about April 29, 2016.

Respondent’s failure to timely file a complete Form R or Form A with EPA or the State of
Maryland for the toxic chemical xylene processed at the Facility during each of the calendar
year 2012, 2013, and 2014 constitutes three violations of Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 11023 and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

Settlement

Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), provides that any person who violates
EPCRA § 313, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, shall be liable to the United States for a civil penalty of up
to $25,000 per violation. Pursuant to the Adjustment of Civil Monetary Penalties for
Inflation, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, violations of Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, which
occurred after January 12, 2009 are subject to an increased statutory maximum penalty of
$37,500 per violation

In settlement of EPA’s claims for civil monetary penalties for the violations alleged in this
Consent Agreement, Respondent agrees to: (1) the assessment of a civil penalty in the
amount of FIFTY THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY SIX DOLLARS ($50,176),
which Respondent agrees to pay in accordance with the terms set forth below, and (2)
perform the Supplemental Environmental Project set forth below.

The aforesaid settlement amount set forth above in Paragraph 65, above, is based on a
number of factors, including, but not limited to, the facts and circumstances of this case, the
statutory factors set forth in EPCRA § 325(b)(1)(C), 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(1)(C), and the
penalty criteria set forth in EPA’s Enforcement Response Policy for Section 313 of the
Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (1986) (August 10, 1992), as
amended. Complainant has also considered the appropriate Adjustment of Civil Monetary
Penalties for Inflation, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 19, and the December 6, 2013
memorandum by EPA Assistant Administrator Cynthia Giles, entitled Amendments to the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s Civil Penalty Policies to Account for Inflation
(Effective December 6, 2013). The settlement in this proceeding is consistent with the
provisions and objectives of EPCRA § 313,42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. Part 372.
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J- At the time of payment, Respondent shall simultaneously send a notice of
Payment, including a copy of Respondent’s check or electronic fund transfer
notice, as applicable, to:

Joyce A. Howell

Senior Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region III (3RC30)
1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

and

Ms. Lydia Guy

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. EPA, Region III (3RC00)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is entitled to assess interest and
late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the United States and a charge to
cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim, as more fully described
below. Accordingly, Respondent’s failure to make timely payment as specified herein
shall result in the assessment of late payment charges including interest, penalties, and/or
administrative costs of handling delinquent debts.

Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue on the date that a
true and correct copy of this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. However,
EPA will not seek to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that is paid within
thirty (30) calendar days after the date on which such interest begins to accrue. Interest
will be assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance
with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(a).

The costs of the Agency’s administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and
assessed monthly throughout the period a debt is overdue. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(b). Pursuant
to Appendix 2 of EPA’s Resources Management Directives - Cash Management, Chapter
9, EPA will assess a $15.00 administrative handling charge for administrative costs on
unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30) day period after the payment is due and an
additional $15.00 for each subsequent thirty (30) days the penalty remains unpaid.

A late payment penalty of six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any portion of
the civil penalty that remains delinquent more than ninety (90) calendar days. 40 C.F.R.

§ 13.11(c). Should assessment of the penalty charge on the debt be required, it shall accrue
from the first day payment is delinquent. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d).

Respondent agrees not to deduct for federal tax purposes the civil monetary penalty

11
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assessed in this CAFO.

Supplemental Environmental Project

74. The following Supplemental Environmental Project (“SEP”) is consistent with applicable
EPA policy and guidelines, including EPA’s Supplemental Environmental Projects Policy,
effective March 10, 2015.

75. Respondent agrees to implement a Compliance Focused Environmental Management
System (“CFEMS”) and obtain ISO 14001 Certification to:

A. Provide tools to plan and conduct current, on-going and future business in a way
that will lessen impacts on the environment.

B. Improve the environmental impact of Respondent’s products, processes and
operation through continuous review.

C. Place focus on Respondent’s consumption of raw materials and resources.
D. Place focus on reducing Respondent’s waste and hazardous materials generation.
E. Achieve improved compliance with environmental laws and regulations.

76. Respondent shall perform the SEP in accordance with the following schedule:

A. No later than ten (10) days after this CAFO becomes effective, Respondent shall
select the Certification Body for its ISO 14001 certification application.

B. No later than thirty (30) days after this CAFO becomes effective, Respondent
shall complete the ISO 14001 questionnaire allowing the ISO 14001
Certification Body to assess the nature, scale and complexity of Respondent’s
organization and Environmental Management System (EMS) processes already
in place.

C. No later than forty (40) days after this CAFO becomes effective, Respondent
shall submit its EMS document to an independent auditor for review for the
purpose of evaluating Respondent’s EMS for compliance with ISO 14001
requirements.

D. No later than eight (8) months after this CAFO becomes effective, Respondent
shall complete its First Stage Assessment (FSA). The FSA shall consist of a
Facility site tour and Facility system overview. A report will be written at the
completion of the FSA identifying any nonconformity and a corrective action
plan for any nonconformity identified by the FSA.

E. No later than ten (10) months after this CAFO becomes effective, Respondent
shall undergo a Certification Assessment. At a minimum, the Certification

12
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following elements:
A. A copy of the independent auditor’s report.

B. A copy of the FSA report and a description of the measures taken by Respondent
to correct any nonconformity found by the FSA.

C. A copy of the Certification Assessment and a description of the measures taken
to correct and deficiencies found by the Certification Assessment.

D. A description of any unforeseen problems encountered during implementation of
the SEP and a statement as to whether such problems will impact the timely
completion of the SEP.

82. Respondent shall submit a written SEP Completion Report to EPA, c/o Craig Yussen, US
EPA Region III, 1650 Arch Street (Mail Code 3L.C61), Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
within thirty (30) days of the date when the CFEMS has been implemented and ISO 14001
certification has been conferred pursuant to Paragraph 76.H. The SEP Completion Report
shall contain the following information:

A. A copy of Respondent’s [SO 14001 certification and CFEMS and a description
of any implementation or operational problems encountered and the solution
thereto;

B. Itemized costs of each SEP expenditure, along with the a sum total of all costs
incurred by the Respondent that are eligible for SEP credit; and

i. In addition to itemizing each SEP expenditure identified in its SEP
Completion Report, Respondent shall clearly identify and provide full,
complete and acceptable financial documentation evidencing its actual
payment of all eligible SEP costs;

ii. Where the SEP Completion Report includes costs not eligible for SEP
credit, those costs must be clearly identified as such;

iii. For purposes of this Paragraph, “acceptable financial documentation”
includes payment invoices, purchase orders, payment receipts, or other
documentation that specifically identifies and itemizes the individual
costs of the goods and/or services for which payment was made.
Canceled drafts do not constitute acceptable documentation unless such
drafts specifically identify and itemize the individual costs of the goods
and/or services for which payment was made.

C. Respondent shall, by its representative officers, sign the SEP Implementation
Report and the SEP Completion Report required by Paragraphs 81 and 82 and
certify under penalty of law, that the information contained therein is true,
accurate, and not misleading by including and signing the following statement:

14
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83.

84.

[ certify under penalty of law that [ have examined and am familiar with
the information submitted in this document and all attachments and that,
based on my inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for
obtaining the information, [ believe that the information is true, accurate,
and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for
submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and
imprisonment.

D. Respondent agrees that failure to submit the written SEP Implementation Report
required by Paragraph 81, above, and the failure to submit the written SEP
Completion Report required by Paragraph 82 above, shall be deemed a violation
of this CAFO and, in such event, Respondent will be liable for stipulated
penalties pursuant to Paragraphs 85 through 87, below.

Respondent agrees that EPA may inspect the Facility at which this SEP is being
implemented at reasonable times in order to confirm that this SEP is being undertaken in
conformity with the requirements of this CAFO.

Upon receipt of the written SEP Completion Report, identified in Paragraph 82 above, EPA
will provide written notification to the Respondent of one of the following:

A. If the Report is deficient, notify the Respondent in writing that the Report is
deficient, provide an explanation of the deficiencies, and grant Respondent an
additional fourteen (14) calendar days to correct those deficiencies;

B. If the SEP Completion Report demonstrates that the SEP has been completed in
accordance with the CAFO, notify the Respondent in writing that EPA has
concluded that the SEP has been completed in accordance with this CAFQ; or

C. If the SEP Completion Report demonstrates that the SEP has not been completed
in accordance with this CAFQO, notify the Respondent in writing that EPA has
concluded that the SEP has not been completed in accordance with this CAFO
and EPA shall seek stipulated penalties in accordance with Paragraphs 84
through 87, below.

If EPA provides notification in accordance with Paragraph 84 above, EPA shall permit
Respondent the opportunity to object in writing to the notification of deficiency within ten
(10) calendar days of receipt of such notification. EPA and Respondent shall have an
additional thirty (30) calendar days from the receipt by EPA of the notification of objection
to reach an agreement on changes necessary to properly implement the SEP, operate the
SEP and/or complete the SEP, and to revise and re-submit the relevant Report. If
agreement cannot be reached within this thirty (30) calendar day period, a person who
holds a management position at EPA shall provide to the Respondent a written statement of
EPA’s decision on the adequacy of the implementation and/or operation of the SEP, and
the adequacy of any Report Respondent is required to submit pursuant to this CAFO, which
shall be a final Agency action binding upon Respondent. In the event this SEP is not
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he or she is fully authorized by the party represented to execute this Consent Agreement and

to legally bind Respondent to the terms and conditions of this Consent Agreement and the
accompanying Final Order.

Effective Date

93. The effective date of this Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order is the date
on which the Final Order, signed by the Regional Administrator of EPA, Region III, or his
designee, the Regional Judicial Officer, is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk pursuant
to the Consolidated Rules of Practice.

Entire Agreement

94. This Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order constitute the entire agreement
and understanding of the parties regarding settlement of all claims pertaining to the specific
violations alleged herein and there are no representations, warranties, covenants, terms, or
conditions agreed upon between the parties other than those expressed in this CAFO.

For Respondent:
Date: ?/ézpj/é M
( erry Weaver
Plant Manager
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For Complainant:

Date:(/}/7/Z?d/Cp By:a/;ﬁ/ / %’\—g /,% ///z

. ]Zey\A/. Howell
./ Sénior Assistant Regional Counsel

Accordingly, I hereby recommend that the Regional Administrator, or his designee, the
Regional Judicial Officer, issue the attached Final Order.

pues Tl R,

John A. %nnstea'd, Director
Land and Chemicals Division
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